ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – SEPTEMBER 23, 2010

(Time Noted – 7:00 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but the Board may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if you have a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we will not be interrupted. And also when speaking, please speak directly into the microphone because it is being recorded. And I'd also like to mention that all Members of the Board have made site visits. Roll call. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER (ARRIVED 7:05 PM)

JAMES MANLEY









DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ALSO PRESENT: CODE COMPLIANCE: GERALD CANFIELD

           JOSEPH MATTINA

(Time Noted – 7:03 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 23, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:03 PM) 



ANNE HAUGLAND



22 FIFTH AVENUE, NBGH







(71-6-34.2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an accessory structure (shed) in a front yard (has two front yards).   

Chairperson Cardone: For tonight's applications all of the Public Hearing Notices for all the new applications being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, September 14 and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, September 15. Our first applicant Anne Haugland, the applicant sent out thirty registered letters, twenty-five were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order. O.K. just identify yourself for the record. 

Ms. Haugland: My name is Anne Haugland at 22 Fifth Avenue, the intersection of Fifth and Woodlawn. 

Ms. Drake: You might tilt the mic up a little bit more.

Mr. McKelvey: Is that coming through? 

Ms. Haugland: Intersection of Fifth and Woodlawn.

Chairperson Cardone: You have to speak really directly into the microphone or it doesn't get picked up. 

Ms. Haugland: Thank you. I'm Norwegian we're very tall.

Mr. Donovan: It's a…it's a good thing it's not near you, Jerry. 

Ms. Haugland: O.K. I want to build an accessory building, shed or whatever you want to call it and apparently I have two front yards since I'm on the intersection. On the side yard I have a big pool that was there when I bought the house and there is just no other place to put the accessory building so I am applying for a variance.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Do we have any questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: I have to do two jobs tonight because our usual Secretary is not here and she does the call for the voting. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Here.

Ms. Drake: No.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. McKelvey: Oh, gee, I tell you.

Mr. Donovan: All thrown off, right?

Chairperson Cardone: We're all thrown off because we're not following our usual routine.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Ms. Haugland: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: I'd just like to read into the record the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination.

(Time Noted – 7:06 PM)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 23, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 8:17 PM) 



ANNE HAUGLAND



22 FIFTH AVENUE, NBGH







(71-6-34.2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an accessory structure (shed) in a front yard (has two front yards).   

Chairperson Cardone: On the first application Anne Haugland, 22 Fifth Avenue, seeking an area variance for an accessory structure (shed) in a front yard (has two front yards).   

This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: That's the old two front yards. 

Mr. Hughes: I'll move for approval.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY


DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.       

(Time Noted – 8:18 PM)
ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 23, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:06 PM)

ROY ADAMS




2 HELENE TERRACE, NBGH







(76-3-2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front porch on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Roy Adams. 

Mr. Adams: (Inaudible) 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. you had thirty…you sent out thirty and twenty-eight were returned. Yes, O.K. The applicant sent out thirty registered letters and twenty-eight were returned.  All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Adams: My house was bought in 1958 and we're trying to make it better for us. We sit out in the patio that we have in the front and have a front porch, which we don't have at the moment, and I've asked to get help and no one wants to do that to help me out. And what I want to do is I want to get that porch put up. I want to get that to go with it so that we can have some (inaudible) time that we're going to be around here and get it done and try to get it to get it to the market looking today not fifty eight years ago. We are trying to bring it up date into today's environment.    

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. and I have the report from the Orange County Department of Planning, which is Local Determination. Do we have any questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public?
Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: I'll second.

Chairperson Cardone:
                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:07 PM)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 23, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 8:18 PM) 



ROY ADAMS




2 HELENE TERRACE, NBGH







(76-3-2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front porch on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Roy Adams, 2 Helene Terrace, seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front porch on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to approve.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: 

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

 (Time Noted – 8:18 PM)
ZBA MEETING – September 23, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:07 PM) 



MARCALBERTI &



154 NORTH FOSTERTOWN RD, NBGH

    AMANDA WEIDKAM    


(17-2-72) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to add a second dwelling unit to one lot to build a new one-family dwelling.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Marc Alberti and Amanda Weidkam. The applicant sent out seventeen registered letters, eleven were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order. O.K. just identify yourself for the record. 

Mr. Alberti: Sure, good evening folks, my name is Mike Gillespie, project engineer for the applicant Mr. Marc Alberti and Ms Amanda Weidkam with us to my right. The request of the application tonight is seeking an approval for an additional principal residence on their parcel located on 154 North Fostertown Road within the A/R Zoning District.   

Chairperson Cardone: I noticed in the application you had stated that the lot had once supported two residences in the past and I noticed on the site visit that there already two buildings on the lot right now. Is that second smaller one going to be eliminated?

Mr. Gillespie: The original intent was to try and keep that but after further discussion and review and so forth its…we wouldn't be a problem removing that as well.

Chairperson Cardone: So in other words, the new structure would be taking the place of that second structure that's currently there? 

Mr. Gillespie: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: If I can, why didn't you go to the Planning Board for a subdivision?

Mr. Gillespie: A…the property meets the bulk regulations. We are in an A/R zone, 40,000 sq. ft. minimum. From an acreage standpoint we meet it we have 2.45, the problem is is there's two issues: dimensionally some of the bulk regulations wouldn't be able to meet because the lot is kind of skinny and long and in addition on the rear end of the lot, the back side, there's actually a Class C stream as well as a floodplain so there's some environmental constraints that would kind of prohibit it to have it not to say you can't develop in the floodplain and so forth but obviously we try to avoid that when you can, you know, from an environmental standpoint in addition to, you know, the elevated cost it would be to work within the floodplain area. 

Mr. Donovan: Because the problem that I see is that this may very well not be an area variance but a use variance which causes you a problem because if I read the application correctly the property is in the A/R zone and the A/R zone single family dwellings are allowed not to exceed one dwelling unit per lot…and just going to the State Law definition of a use variance and area variance. The definition of a use variance is the authorization by the Zoning Board the use of land for a purpose which is otherwise not allowed or is prohibited by the applicable zoning regulations that being by limiting to one house on a lot the obvious implication is you're not allowed to have two houses on a lot. Whereas the definition of an area variance is the authorization by the ZBA for the use of a plan in a manner which is not allowed by the dimensional or physical requirements and that's my concern here that I think you fall under the use variance category which makes it a difficult burden for you to sustain. I'm only…I understand the issues…a…and you may want to revisit that subdivision application because its another way to perhaps accomplish your objective but I don't know…

Chairperson Cardone: Maybe Joe could speak to that? Or Jerry.

Mr. Canfield: Is that on?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes

Mr. Hughes: Yes. 

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Code Compliance, the applicant did visit the Building Department and for just for clarification I think the Chairman had a question. Currently there are two existing structures on the lot. One is a residence and the rear one is somewhat of a cottage, I believe.

Mr. Gillespie: Cabin.

Mr. Canfield: And it was our discussion with the applicant that that rear structure would come down and the…this applicant or this application is to construct a new residence and the applicants have expressed desire to keep the existing residence up near what's (inaudible)

Mr. Donovan: I guess there's a question are we talking about a continuation of a pre-existing condition? I mean, are they both occupied?

Mr. Canfield: No, the one existing dwelling is occupied.

Mr. Gillespie: To the front right.

Mr. Canfield: The rear structure which is nothing more than a clubhouse, a larger type structure a…perhaps 12 x 15…a…and I'm not certain what's its used for but the applicants had said they will take that down so the end result being that we're looking at is two residences on one lot.

Mr. Donovan: I understand. I'm not looking for a problem but when you only have one residence that's permitted if you want to put two on one lot that…that falls in my view under the definition of a use variance now if we have a condition…a situation where there's a…that use exists and its existed either legally or before there was zoning a…and we have a continuation of that then I can certainly fit that into the request this evening but a…

Mr. Canfield: I believe…

Chairperson Cardone: According to the application it says that the current property has supported two residences so it must have been used as a residence at some point.

Mr. Gillespie: Right, it currently is not in the rear but it had at some point. I know both of those structures the tax records reflect they were built in the 1930's so from a time perspective.

Mr. Manley: So you something that is maybe pre-existing non-conforming?

Mr. Donovan: And that's fine but pretty much once a meeting I'm asked "Is what we're doing tonight setting a precedent?" And then my answer is always "Everything you do sets a precedent". So I just…be careful.

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to a…toss the ball back and forth a little bit as usual here.

Mr. Donovan: We missed you last month.

Mr. Hughes: I bet you did. Short meeting was it?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, it was.

Mr. Hughes: You didn't wring them out good enough. I'd like to go back into the history here a little bit and all of the buildings we're talking about are pre-existing non-conforming and I believe part of the old Slokum farm if you go back far enough. And we have a considerable amount of space that straddles almost equidistant over a Class C, which doesn't have a rate of rise that's significant as the Gidneytown Creek just south of the headwaters so it really doesn't have a chance to get going there. Are we looking at a pre-existing non-conforming with two units on there and 100,000 sq.ft. of space for an accessory apartment opportunity not in a duplex configuration? Now, I'll bet you'll be surprised I know everybody on both sides up and down the road and they all come out and wanted to know what the hell I was doing there. There is nobody that I ran into that's against this. There are many other such settings in that same neighborhood almost every other home there has the same thing. There's a house up by the road, the lots aren't very wide they run back into the valley there on both sides of the Gidneytown Creek but because of the floodplain and because of limits with offsets and setbacks its hard to divide anyone of these into two because of the narrow width. By the way, I think that second building is about 24 x 30 and it looks like that there was a residence and a garage in there at one time and I don't know if you intend to keep it as a garage or a use of that nature but I don't know if its necessary to demolish that if we focus on the project in the respect that we have a reverse accessory apartment here we don't have the primary building looking to extend for family members and I believe that that's the intent here for the building out front that you want. Didn't you want to keep somebody there in that?

Mr. Gillespie: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Do we have a hybrid cat here? Do we have a male calico cat where we have the 100,000 sq. ft. plus that's in one condition for duplex operations? We certainly have enough land and raw materials of buildable properties. We have two buildings that have been there even before I was in Fostertown and…

Mr. Canfield: That was quite a while ago.

Mr. Hughes: …centuries…the stream came through there when I was born. The other part of it is the lot between where they're talking about and where the stream floodplain is is a considerable opening and I don't know that they'd have any problems reaching all of the requirements for their setbacks and side yards. My main concern is the bedrock underneath there. You'll see there's outcroppings all over the place and where that slopes to the back from the glacier down back and forth there it went down to the bedrock. So you won't have to dig very far you'd be right down to the granite. So counsel, that's the backdrop of it. I don't know what to call it. A red and green elephant or whatever it is in effect pre-existing non-conforming. It is an opportunity to provide housing for a family member. It is certainly on a lot that's big enough to accommodate all the needs that's necessary in this situation and as far as its precedential…I don't believe it is because we have a very unique situation here on many levels. It's unique in a neighborhood that it rests in and there's other streams there as well that crisscross. So counsel I'm looking for some guidance here. What do we do with a reverse accessory apartment the…?

Mr. Donovan: Well see we're not talking about accessory apartment. We're talking about two principal uses that's raises…that raises my issue.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Donovan: And I guess the question then is if we're going to go down the path of a pre-existing non-conforming use…

Mr. Hughes: With continuation. As far as I know there has been somebody living there for a hundred years.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. I'm fine with that. The question is the dwelling that you are I'll say replacing approximately how large is that and approximately how large would the new one be? 

Mr. Hughes: I don't think they are replacing a building. I think they're adding a brand new building. 

Mr. Gillespie: Well what…what?

Mr. Hughes: That's what I read.

Mr. Donovan: Well I'd rather they'd replace a building.  

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Gillespie: Right. And that's what I said and that's not a problem. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Gillespie: The a…the smaller building in the back is a…or in the rear is 540 sq. ft. which is effectively 20 x 27 …(inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 24 x 30, it look bigger than what he described and I thought maybe I was in the wrong place.

Mr. Canfield: I didn't do a site inspection. I drive by there.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K. So is that second building an issue? 

Mr. Gillespie: In terms of removing it?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. 

Mr. Gillespie: No.

Mr. Donovan: No, but the one that exists, I'm sorry you said six hundred?

Chairperson Cardone: Approximately six.

Mr. Gillespie: 640  (540)

Mr. Donovan: And the one you're putting up is what size? 

Mr. Gillespie: The new home is 2300. 

Mr. Hughes: So now we have to do some calculations. What's your total? Almost three acres there or a little over three acres? 

Mr. Gillespie: 2.45.

Mr. Hughes: 2.45. So you have…?

(Inaudible)

Mr. Canfield: One hundred and six thousand on the square footage Ron.

Mr. Hughes: And you're required to have a hundred thousand for a duplex just to compare living quarters…it's not the same thing here. But when you do a duplex you have to have a hundred thousand…

Chairperson Cardone: It's not a duplex.   

Mr. Hughes: …in the A/R zone that requires 40,000 minimum.

Chairperson Cardone: Speak into the microphone please.

Mr. Hughes: I'm sorry. Everybody get that?

Mr. Gillespie: Just to be clear too, we filed for a Building Permit. We were asked to come here seeking a variance for the two structures that's the crux of our application. In the meanwhile, we did take a look and took a little tighter look at the Code and as mentioned, it almost appears that we would qualify for the ability of a detached accessory structure on this. As mentioned, the one thing that I saw in there was that the principal residence has to have a lifespan of at least five years in order to allow that to happen. That was something that I picked up out of the Code. We don't have that situation here because this is a new home. O.K.? So, if there was some flexibility specific to that provision I think we may be able to fall into that as well but a…

Mr. Donovan: The other way that is more typical is that you go to the Planning Board with a subdivision and you have a lot width issue, you have a front yard issue a…and then the Planning Board refers you to this Board for an area variance which is a…a certainly a much less stringent standard. I mean, is there…is there a desire or a need for some reason to have only one lot as opposed to two separate lots? 

Mr. Gillespie: A…not particularly but as mentioned when you take a look at the map in the rear portion of this property the back let's say third of it between the stream and the floodplain and so forth effectively becomes a very tough place to do business in terms of developing a home. I think you actually even took a minimum one acre off the front creating sometimes a flag lot situation off the back, you know, you're into a situation where, you know, it would be very…it would be very tough and costly in order to develop that on bottom section of this parcel. One of the other things to mention too is part of this the current residences do not have, you know, approved currents up to standards water supplies, septic systems and so forth. As part of what we're doing here even with removing the second building was to take and abandon the existing septic system, abandon the existing well which is effectively just a hand dug well out there and tie everything into new facilities which would be up to current specifications and I know that doesn't make a particularly play into your decision here as the Zoning Board of Appeals but certainly makes it a much better situation out there from a…a public health standpoint. I mean to answer the question, I don't know if it would be as much as an issue with obtaining approval for subdivision and a variance maybe either from this Board specific to the dimensional requirements of…of…of seeking variances to allow that to happen as much as being able to get a system or a septic system down in that bottom section there. It would be, you know, I'd be in conformance with Appendix 75 A of the Sanitary Code. I mean its, its as you trail off the back of that lot things get a little a…moist, let's say, so at the end of the day it seems that it would make much…much…it would be a much better plan to keep everything up on the higher portions of the lot and that was one of the considerations in terms of when we laid out our wells and septics and houses and so forth as well.

Mr. Hughes: So in essence you're suggesting that you would take the existing home and make a design that would handle the effluent from both houses in between them?

Mr. Gillespie: We've already actually done that.   

Mr. Hughes: It's pretty hard rock, two, three feet down when you get down to the back.

Mr. Gillespie: There, there's a…we actually got a little lucky there the soil is a little tough, we ended up with a little bit of fill on…on our septic system but we actually went through that as far as the application to the Building Department and provided a plan with all those details.

Mr. Hughes: You did your deep tests? Your deep pit tests and everything and there's enough there?

Mr. Canfield: They did submit a a engineering design…a…which has been reviewed and it is acceptable.

Mr. Hughes: And it's not a raised bed? It's subsurface?

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Mr. Gillespie: Yeah, I think we have a little bit of a…

Mr. Canfield: Shallow trench.

Mr. Gillespie: Correct.

Mr. Canfield: Shallow absorption trench, which still qualifies as a standard system. It's not an alternate system so it doesn't need County Health approval.

Mr. Hughes: So you would have to have a tank for each building and a distribution box for each building.

Mr. Canfield: No, you can do with one tank, one leach field providing the calculations are…a…acceptable and the calculations that they had submitted are acceptable…

Mr. Hughes: And there's Town water in that part of the world?

Mr. Canfield: …for the usage, the daily usage.

Mr. Hughes: There's Town water on North Fostertown Road there?

Mr. Canfield: It's not usable. There is Town water there but it is not potable water so none of the residents are allowed to tap it.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So then you would back feed the original house with the new well.

Mr. Gillespie: We would abandon the existing well and fill a new well to feed both homes with the new well. And we're also providing new septic tank, the proposal was to provide new septic tanks, one for the new residence, one for the front principal residence and then tie both into a distribution box end of system. And the flows, the bedroom count has all been taken into account in terms of the septic design. 

Mr. Hughes: So now counsel back to the suggestion you made about…

Mr. Donovan: I didn't make a suggestion. I just found a problem, Ron, I'm good at finding those I'm not good at solving them though.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K. I'm good at solving maybe we can…a…what is this thing, is it a reverse…?

Mr. Donovan: Well I mean, if…if a…let me try to characterize it this way, we have a situation where the Board is satisfied that we have a pre-existing non-conforming situation and that we've had two residences on this dwelling, I'm sorry, on this lot prior to zoning and we have a situation where we have some environmental sensitivity given the stream, also the soil conditions…a…and that it make sense to have the house, the new house located in its present configuration…a…you know, I think you're looking at a situation where absent those conditions this would be a use variance but it may well fit under the category of a continuation of non-conforming use. Now I do caution you it is a bit of a stretch in that you generally only have normal maintenance or repair and I guess we…perhaps we could hang our hat on the situation that we're going from single family to single family albeit a little bit larger but I think that's…if that's the direction that you're going in then that's the best way to get there.

Mr. Hughes: I don't always take his advice.

Mr. Canfield: Jerry doesn't even like my advice. I can tell by the look on his face. 

Chairperson Cardone: A…wait and I was going to ask for Jerry's opinion also.

Mr. Canfield: I'm sorry. Repeat that Grace.

Chairperson Cardone: I was going to ask for your opinion also. Do you see this as an area variance?

Mr. Canfield: Yes we do…a…not that I totally disagree with Dave's a…

Mr. Donovan: You're entitled to disagree…

Mr. Canfield: …expert opinion.

Mr. Donovan: …I…I see it as a use variance so we can take that…

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, taking everything…

Mr. Donovan: …we can take that off the table and just tackle it a different way that it’s a continuation of a pre-existing non-conforming use.

Mr. Canfield: We give that a lot of consideration and and looking at our first initial response was to…we spoke with the applicants and we were looking at a sub-division a…the applicants have expressed a…that they want to build their dream home and a…they'd like to have family members reside in the existing structure a…with that taken into consideration, in a spirit of cooperation, we looked at the possibility of the sub-division and again our function is to try to a…make things a painless as possible if at all possible a…and best advise the applicant  the best way to accomplish what they want to, in accordance with the Code. Looking at the sub-division regulations and taking into consideration the environmental issues that we just talked about a…there is a slope to the property to the rear a…and then another issue that we considered well…as well was the issue of the pre-existing non-conforming a…typically you loose that protection when you go for a sub-division. So in actuality if they went for the sub-division, they would go Planning Board, Zoning Board back to Planning to accomplish what they wanted. A…with all of that being said and I just say that to give you a background of what our thought process was…a…we thought that best it would be an area variance before this Board…a…some other things that we would…we considered in the past we've had seen decisions with conditions a…I know there was some discussion between the applicant and also some of the Board Members a…should the Board choose to approve this and I'm not trying to lead you but a consideration would be and I would suggest some type of conditions a…to restrict the use. I think the biggest fear with this type scenario is rental properties. I mean, it is what it is and that's the purpose of the increased acreage for two family properties, two-family a…income properties. A…the Town examined that quite a few years ago and that's why they made the lot sizes much larger…a…so going back to some type of conditions as a consideration for the Board a…to cover some of the things we discussed as far as the unused cottage. I believe that's the best name for it in the back, if that's to be demo'd (demolished) then so be it part of the condition demo it and I've also seen to conditions on this last property to be left if you choose to go that route, the existing residence some type of conditions. We had discussion of this being a…properties for family members a…I believe, they're senior and they want to stay there. I believe it was one of the applicant's parents…a perhaps you may want to consider conditioning to that respect if the property changes hands or whatever. A…so to sum everything up Grace, you had asked what my opinion is, I do believe we're looking at an area variance…a…I think conditioned it would best a…meet the intents of the Code taking into consideration the reasoning behind increased lots and essentially rental property and that's what I think we're trying to prevent from these rental properties on smaller lots popping up all the…all over the place. I hope that answers your question.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, thank you. 

Mr. Manley: I would tend to agree that obviously we need to be cautious about Mr. Donovan you're saying starting…

Chairperson Cardone: Speak into the microphone.

Mr. Manley: …sorry about that, starting a…a precedence, however, I think this particular property is somewhat unique. That's just, you know, my thoughts I tend to hear what Mr. Canfield is saying about a, you know, the property having some issues in the back with the…with the floodplain and that certainly making this a little more difficult to go through the Planning Board process a…I don't know, Ron do you…?

Mr. Hughes: I'm not so itchy to see that other building taken down when they'll be back here three years from now saying, we need a shed, we need this, we need that. I don't know if the buildings removal would be a proper move for a condition for this project. If the applicant has no problem with it I don't. 

Mr. Manley: Actually it has to be though.

Chairperson Cardone: It has to be if you're looking at it as a pre-existing condition and you're replacing it.   

Mr. Hughes: So you're just taking one living dwelling unit and replacing it with another and…

Chairperson Cardone: Exactly, right.

Mr. Hughes: I understand it from that level. 

Mr. Gillespie: And to be clear the applicant has no problem with…with allowing that to happen if it…if it allows for the Board to feel comfortable to move in the direction that they're talking about. In addition, there's kind of a small little positive as well if that building is taken down because right now it doesn't meet the current side yard setback. So in fact, if we remove that and replace it even though an albeit with a larger structure we're actually reducing one of the non-conformities of the lot in terms of that side yard setback for that structure so a...you know, it's kind of a bonus.

Mr. Donovan: Jerry, let me ask this question. What…what dimensional requirement are we varying? 

Mr. Canfield: It's not so much a dimensional requirement, Dave, it's the Bulk Use Requirements essentially you're not permitted to put two structures on one lot.

Mr. Donovan: Listen, I'm not going to pretend this isn't a legitimate objective and…and make sort of sense to find a way to get there but, you know, I need to go by what the definitions are to make sure that we do, we accomplish our objective the right way. And the way I read the definition of an area variance and a use variance it’s a use variance. Now that…you may not think that makes any sense at all but…but, you know, I'm not in the business of making sense. I'm only in the business of telling you what the law say.

Mr. Canfield: Right.

Mr. Donovan: If we want to get to our objective I think the best way to get there is on the pre-existing, non-conforming now that does not suggest at all that this is going to the Planning Board. It suggests that it gets resolved here because we're not saying going…we're saying grant the proposal as it is before us on a…by the virtue of the fact that it’s a pre-existing non-conforming condition. And, we're going to allow a…because we allow maintenance, repairs, structural alteration, relocation, reconstruction, we're going…we're going to fit it into that category.  

Mr. Canfield: If you were a…looking at a pre-existing non-conforming condition and I'm thinking out loud, replacing one structure with another structure, are we thinking that once we demolish the one structure we now lost all that protection and we construct the new structure a…

Mr. Donovan: Well, I'm…I'm going to grant you that this is not the typical situation, as I said before, it’s a bit of a stretch but…but the pre-existing non-conforming condition, I guess, that we're talking about is two principal dwellings on one lot.

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: That's the prohibition.

Mr. Hughes: If I could suggest a parallel? We've been through this before and they are very rare and they are unique unto themselves. If you'll recall a subdivision on Orchard Street where there was even a more ancient building and they wanted to leave that building as in residue with the owner's main house, the same thing but they wanted to subdivide the rest of it and keep so many acres for hay fields and so many acres to build houses. And because there had been somebody living in the house and it was a family member these things do go on. They are few and far between. I don't know if a stretch is the right word but it is a little bit far reaching into that. The detriment to it is we have so many geophysical constraints here because of the stream and the bedrock and the neighbors and the narrow width of these lots all along North Fostertown Road. They're all the same like that and several streams on every side of it. So there's really no other way to achieve it by getting more land and what Jerry hit on has tickled a little something in my memory too. Do we wait and build the new house before the old gets knocked down to assure the protection? Or is it that critical, can we go ahead and approve this with a condition if we choose to do so? And take it down at any time? I don't want to make a false move here where it appears we're stacking the deck.

Mr. Donovan: Well I think could approve it so long as its not…no more than two principal dwellings are occupied at any one time and give whatever discretion the Building Department needs. I would…I would…I'm a little cautious about a condition that says only a family member a…

Mr. Hughes: That's against the law.

Mr. Donovan: Well not only that, I guess, Jerry are you going to send Joe over to…to do the blood test? 

Mr. Canfield: That's against the law.

Mr. Hughes: They both are.

Mr. Manley: Isn't there something within the Code where it says if the degree…if you're reducing the degree of non-conformity that Building Department has the ability to issue a Building Permit? Is there something that if you have a pre-existing non-conforming structure and they're moving it and they're decreasing the degree of non-conformity that that's something that's allowed. I thought I remember reading something that within the Code. Because you and I, a number about a year ago, Jerry, had talked about something like that.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, I don't remember that Jim. I don't recollect that Section of the Code. I remember…I know a Section of the Code that's just the opposite, if you increase the degree of non-conformity…

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Canfield: ...you'll be back before this Board. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is there anyone from public who had a question or needed to make a comment? 

No response. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have any more questions from the Board?

Ms. Drake: I just wanted to make one statement just for clarification also. Jerry, if you were to sub-divide that then you would have to have a septic system for each lot…?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, that's correct   

Ms. Drake: …as that would not be able to support that either because there isn't sufficient room to have two septic systems on this lot obviously which is why you're doing them combined anyway?  

Mr. Gillespie: In my professional opinion I'd say yes money solves a lot problems in terms of saying never can, but it…

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Gillespie: …because it comes to a point where it doesn't make a whole lot of financial sense.

Ms. Drake: Right, with their stream and so forth and the buffers you can't do the septic system back there and so forth?  

Mr. Gillespie: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anything else from the Board? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: I'll second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Gillespie: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:37 PM)

ZBA MEETING – September 23, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 8:19 PM) 



MARCALBERTI &



154 NORTH FOSTERTOWN RD, NBGH

    AMANDA WEIDKAM    


(17-2-72) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to add a second dwelling unit to one lot to build a new one-family dwelling.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Marc Alberti and Amanda Weidkam, 154 North Fostertown Road, seeking an area variance to add a second dwelling unit to one lot to build a new one-family dwelling. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? And I also the Orange County Department of Planning report which is Local Determination.

Mr. Hughes: I would just like to a…have our counsel advise on the language that would be necessary if we can put this package together. I believe by what has been discussed and what State law puts down that being that there are two dwelling units on the one property that…

Mr. Donovan: That's right, and the information before the Board is that there are two dwelling units presently occupied on the premises and what we have is a one of the dwelling units will be demolished and replaced by another dwelling unit. Both dwelling units are single-family residential dwelling units. So based upon the information before us it seems to be that we have a situation where there is a continuation of a pre-existing, non-conforming condition that also…another reason to have these two houses where they are proposed is because of the physical constraints of the soil, the floodplain, the location of the stream but in any event it is a continuation of a pre-existing condition not a variance of any kind before the Board. So I…if the Board is interested in moving along those lines, I would indicate to you that is a feasible way to proceed.

Mr. Manley: Well I think that the a…applicant also the Building Department also testified that the buildings were built in the '30's which is well before the Town's zoning.

Mr. Hughes: One other thing to the constraints of the buildable acres that exists on this property, the stream and the floodplain in a ratio proportion of maybe 66% to 33% of where it would leave the residue lot makes it impossible to achieve this in another fashion which is one of the key issues that we have to address and looking at the balance for the benefit for the applicant. Its unique situation both geographically and historically also casts another light on it. I'll move it for approval. 

Mr. Manley: I just have one other question that would be if I could ask Brenda because you're the…the engineer. Based on your knowledge and what you know do you feel that the ability to put in those two septic systems because of the way the property is configured it would make it more difficult for the…the applicant to really achieve that based on the way the property is laid out based on the slope, the…

Ms. Drake: Yes, I do.

Mr. Manley: …the property being wet in the back.

Ms. Drake: Yes, I do.

Mr. Donovan: Just to be clear though Brenda obviously you're not speaking in a professional capacity but based upon your general knowledge you're speaking as a Board Member.

Ms. Drake: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: No seal on that a…?

Ms. Drake: No.

Mr. Hughes: I'll move it for approval looking for a second for discussion.

Ms. Eaton: I'll second. 

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, do you believe we have everything covered under this and that we're heading in the right direction?

Mr. Donovan: I believe that you have everything covered as best as it can be covered.   

(Inaudible)  

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

 (Time Noted – 8:23 PM)
ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 23, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:37 PM) 



KEITH DI LORENZO


120 PARKVIEW STREET SOUTH, NBGH







(52-16-9.1) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to build a one-family residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant, held open from last month, Keith DiLorenzo.  

Mr. Miller: Good evening, my name is Don Miller representing Barger & Miller and I must apologize to the Board for my inability to be here last month to try to address your issues and questions about what…a…unfortunately happened in the placement of this foundation for a…Keith DiLorenzo. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. and we had asked for more information and I see that you did supply us with a map.

Mr. Miller: Yes, maam, a…we a…we went back out and we located all the structures on the…on both Parkview and Washington. A…if you recall this is in Orange Lake one time it was probably a Bungalow type of community. There are homes ranging anywhere from 1946 to 2005 that have been built in these two streets. A…the a…there's…the one's on my board if you look for it the ones that are in pink, I believe, were placed before zoning. They're small, they're very close to the sidelines, other ones are anywhere from 1960 to 2005 within the neighborhood. And a…there's one other issue I want to bring up, there's a vacant lot it's almost in the middle of the page for advanced modular…because of the new zoning requirements based on the change from R-2 to R-1 if this individual decides to build on that lot he can't build a structure without coming to see you if its bigger than 20 x 20. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I have a couple. I wasn't at the last meeting and obviously I read the minutes of what took place. This is the one where the foundation is in the wrong spot?

Chairperson Cardone: Correct.

Mr. Miller: Yeah, it placed two feet a…seven and three-quarter inches too close to the sideline. 

Mr. Hughes: And…

(Inaudible audience member)

Mr. Hughes: …who put the stakes in the ground?

Mr. Miller: That was me. What had happened was when we originally had done the project working for a…a…Kenneth Glusker in 2005 before Mr. DiLorenzo bought the property we staked it all out and a plot plan was generated based upon the R-2 zoning a…by the time when the property changed hands a…we went back out there and I had to admit it was O.K. It’s a complete oversight not realizing that the zoning had changed. I know it had been four years but there was no reason to raise a flag to say that it had changed. So the plot plan was regenerated based upon what it should have been but it never got back to me to move the stakes over the extra three feet. 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Donovan: I'm sorry. 

Mr. Hughes: Isn't there a provision with that your office comes out to witness these things when it goes on? Or the aftermath of the placement? 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Mattina: When I do a plan review everything is based off the plot plan of the exact dwelling. A letter was generated on the original review stating that it was in violation of the side yard. Revisions were brought in with the plot plan showing the required thirty feet.

Mr. Hughes: Is that that two point seven that's referred to here? 

Mr. Miller: The change from an R-2 to an R-1 was a sideline requirement of being fifteen feet to thirty feet. 

Mr. Mattina: Right. The minimum setbacks now are thirty feet.

Mr. Hughes: And, O.K. so how far did they miss it with the new set of stakes.  

Mr. Miller: Two feet, seven and three-quarter inches.

Mr. Hughes: That's what I'm saying two point seven, is that the discrepancy?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.  

Mr. Donovan: And one of the things the Board asked you last month was to show what impact, if any, this would have on the neighborhood and you've shown us, you brought a map in tonight that shows your obviously twenty-seven point three feet away from your sideline. You have a couple of houses across the street that are twenty-eight point six, thirty point nine, twenty-two point one, twenty-eight point one, twenty-eight point one…

Mr. Miller: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: …and, its your position that the house that you're going to build is substantially similar to those homes, its not going to have any adverse impact on the neighborhood as a result, correct?

Mr. Miller: That's correct. Based upon today's standards there are several homes that would…could not possibly meet the zoning requirements.

Chairperson Cardone: I think one of our biggest concerns was also that once it was established that it should have thirty, the plans were drawn up to show thirty but then the stakes were never moved. 

Mr. Miller: A…I…it was a…it was a pure oversight based upon an engineer the surveyor to go back out and…and shift the stakes because it had been staked out a…based upon the first plot plan and we did not even realize that there had been an issue until the first plot plan was denied to tell that our zoning requirements had changed and it…it didn't get back to me to move those stakes over the…the other three feet. Now the original plot plan, even though the side lot requirements were based upon R-2 were fifteen feet we had placed it at 26 feet and I thought that when the…I first generated my positioning to have the staked a seven…a foundation put in that I exceeded even that I was at twenty-seven plus feet from the sideline and it…it…it was just a…a pure oversight. There was no…there was no malice intent or trying to slight any one-way or the other. It was just something that it unfortunately happened.  

Mr. McKelvey: You…you didn't check to see what the zoning was before you staked it out then?

Mr. Miller: Right, because we were basing our everything on our…port…(inaudible) that had been in 2005.

Mr. Manley: But also you're saying once you were advised that you had to be thirty feet, you at that point, failed to go back and move the stakes even after you were told it needed to be thirty feet, right?

Mr. Miller: That in…in essence that's correct.

Mr. Hughes: So Jerry at what point, or Joe, you pour footings first and then the walls? Or was this a footing wall pour that preempted you from calling them? 

Mr. Mattina: No, what we started in the office due to the recent rashes of misplaced foundations we let them pour the footings, we let them pour the foundations and then we stop the job until we get a certified plot plan showing that they've met the minimum requirements. So they had two inspections and then the Stop Work Order issued due to the location.

Mr. Hughes: All right, at what point did you notice it was out of whack, after the footer or the foundation?

Mr. Mattina: No once the foundation is poured they locate it on a plot plan, submit it and if gets approved then they can have their third inspection. If not, then here we are. 

Mr. Hughes: Has this happened with this same group before?

Mr. Mattina: No, sir. 

Mr. Hughes: There's been a flurry of these kinds of disasters and unfortunately I have to say its been my observation that there's certain groups of guys that go in and bulldoze and do what they want and when they see a lot of rock they shift a little bit and then they end up back here with crocodile tears. This stuff has to stop, you know. What is that going to do to the lot next door? Does it have a domino effect? Will it force his neighbor to have a more constricted privacy barrier around the house because he's two and a half feet away? If the guy next door is two and a half feet the other way now we're getting it down and down and down. I have no other question.    

Chairperson Cardone: I think the neighbor on that side is over fifty feet from his property line.

Mr. Miller: It’s a duplex and its over fifty feet from the sidelines.

Mr. Hughes: I'm not really speaking site specifically. I'm speaking generically…

Mr. Miller: I understand.

Mr. Hughes: …that this kind of stuff crops up and you don't want to be the last guy on the whip when everybody around you has painted you into a circle.

Mr. Miller: We're it…and also we're also at the…I know there is a two lots, two tax lots further down the street than we are but we are the…it appears to be the last buildable lot unless the gentleman that owns the last two lots combines his two tax lots into one where he may possibly have enough setback requirements to build on that last lot. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Do we have anything else from the Board? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we close the Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Miller: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. I would ask you in the interest of time if you would wait out in the hallway and we will call you in shortly.

(Time Noted – 7:50 PM)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 23, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 8:24 PM) 



KEITH DI LORENZO


120 PARKVIEW STREET SOUTH, NBGH







(52-16-9.1) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to build a one-family residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: Under other Board Business…

Mr. Donovan: Did we do DiLorenzo?

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, no we didn't. O.K.

Mr. Donovan: I saw Mr. DiLorenzo pass out that's why…

Chairperson Cardone: Sorry Mr. DiLorenzo. O.K. on the application of Keith DiLorenzo, 120 Parkview Street South, seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to build a one-family residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think they did what we asked them to do to come back with the map showing all of the properties on it in the area.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, you're convinced there's no other impacts up and down the road because of this? Joe? 

Mr. Mattina: No, based on what it is it shouldn't have any impact on, you know in my opinion, on the neighborhood.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Mr. Manley: Second.   

Chairperson Cardone: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

   







(Time Noted – 8:26 PM)
ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 23, 2010

END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 8:26 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Under Other Board Business we have a letter from Code Compliance, 

Request for interpretation of accessory building square footage: 

Dear Madam Chairperson, I would like to request an official interpretation for the calculation for square footage of an accessory building. When calculating the total square footage does the cantilevering roof system that covers a concrete slab be included? I will attach photos of the structure in question for your review. I will be attending the September 23rd meeting to answer any questions you or the Board might have. I would ask that this matter be addressed at that time due to pending court actions. Thank you. Joseph Mattina, Code Compliance. 

If I might say so it’s a bit unusual that we do get a request from Code Compliance for an interpretation. Usually those requests come from the applicant who has been denied but…

Mr. Hughes: Do you have an application for a Building Permit on this project, Joe?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, for the remaining shed, yes I do.

Mr. Hughes: And what prompted you to write the request to us about this? Was it a calculation thing or…?

Mr. Mattina: Well the way I calculated it I referred it to the Zoning Board of Appeals. Failure to follow through with my request led to the issue of an Appearance Ticket. Since that time, you know, he's…him and his counsel has requested an interpretation to see if what I'm sending him for is appropriate…

Mr. Hughes: So they have an application for a Building Permit with you that was denied but they have no application with us?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel.

Inaudible Audience Member

Mr. Hughes: Well you would be here if…

Chairperson Cardone: Would you please a…Mr. Saffiotti could you take the microphone please so that…?

Mr. Saffiotti: My name is Joseph Saffiotti I am representing Mr. Maniscalchi and his wife. They have a residence located on Ashley Drive. My client built his original house in 1993. They constructed a pool on the premises. They a…took out a Building Permit (application) for a pool house which has been constructed. The Building Permit is pending. At the time, we realized that there no Permit for the gazebo on the property and the shed that has already been erected. We wanted to correct that with the Code Department. The problem (inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Could you talk right into the microphone please?

Mr. Saffiotti: The problem that we're hitting is the Town Code has a limitation of 1000 sq. ft. for accessory structures. The shed and the gazebo and the…a…and the pool house if you're use the interpretation that we're trying to determine, what is the calculation of the square footage of the pool house? Mark Taylor and I have been back and forth with correspondences. There's some dis…discrepancies in the Code as to how you define the square footage of the accessory structures. Your Town Code in, I believe Mark's memo was 185-3 a…defines a building as a structurally wholly or partially enclosed within exterior walls and a roof affording shelter. The floor area is based on the exterior faces of the exterior walls. The pool house enclosure, the enclosed section is 600 sq. ft. The overhang roof is approximately…Danny how big is its…about 300 sq. ft. If you use the a…the 300 sq. ft. were over the thousand square feet and we don't believe it should be included. We believe we're within the thousand square feet of allowable accessory structures. And the question for this Board is we ask for the interpretation as to the size of the pool house for calculations for accessory structures. I don't know if the Board has…this is one of the photos, which shows the overhang. May I approach?  

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: We have a complete package in the project of what goes on.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, but we don't have that.

Chairperson Cardone: We don't have that. 

Mr. McKelvey: We don't have that.

Chairperson Cardone: We don't have that, no.

Mr. Hughes: And you don't have an application before us?

Mr. Saffiotti: No.

Chairperson Cardone: No, they do not.

Mr. Hughes: You're just for interpretation. 

Mr. Saffiotti: We're here for an interpretation.

Mr. Hughes: By his request?

Mr. Donovan: No, no, no.

Chairperson Cardone: No. 

Mr. Donovan: No, the way this came to the Board is a request from the Building Department. Building Department? Code Compliance? Which?

Mr. Mattina: Code Compliance. Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Code Compliance.

Mr. Hughes: So he challenged the way you calculated the footage and that's why you're here for this interpretation?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, just to go back and forth and…

Mr. Hughes: Is heated living space an issue in this discussion or has that been disregarded?

Mr. Mattina: What's that?

Mr. Hughes: Is heated living space in part of this formula or has that been put aside?

Mr. Mattina: Living space?

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Hughes: Well I see that the pool house listed as being unheated.

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Hughes: But yet there is a kitchen in there, there's light fixtures and…

Mr. Mattina: That's a whole another subject.

Mr. Hughes: And is that the one with no Permits and…?

Mr. Mattina: His Permits have expired and the Permits were…it wasn't built in accordance with the issued Permits. Yes. And just as you were saying before there was a Building Permit application March 10, 2010 to the Building Department and on March 11, 2010 the Zoning Board Secretary did send out her required letters, you know, stating that they needed to apply to the Zoning Board for a variance.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I always like to know how we got to this point.

Mr. Saffiotti: We've been back and forth with the Town attorney several times spoke and discussed at length with Mark Taylor. He felt that, he agreed that we should come to this Board for the interpretation that's why he asked the Building Department to submit this interpretation request.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Saffiotti: So we're trying to clarify the size calculation for accessory structures for this particular pool house.

Mr. Hughes: Does someone live in that pool house?

Mr. Saffiotti: No. We believe that the roof overhang should not be included in the area calculation of the pool house based on the Town's definition of building size.

Mr. Hughes: Could you cite us a Section of the Code. 

Mr. Saffiotti: I just did. I told you it was 185-3.

Mr. Hughes: I know what you read to me. 

Mr. Saffiotti: It's 185-3 of the Town defines building and floor area.

Mr. Hughes: But you have nothing else that's cited on how you calculated your footages?

Mr. Saffiotti: There is nothing in the Code that that's why we're here for the interpretation. Mr. Taylor and I have been back and forth, we recognize it's a gray area and we're trying to clarify that with this Board. I can tell you that I understand historically the Town has used the exterior walls in calculating building sizes. 

Mr. Manley: Mr. Saffiotti, underneath that overhang I see what appears to be or what looks to be a fireplace. Is that correct?

Mr. Saffiotti: Danny is there a…outs…terior…interior fireplace?

Inaudible

Chairperson Cardone: Could you please use the microphone?

Mr. Saffiotti: This is my client Mr. Maniscalchi who owns…

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Saffiotti: …the property.

Mr. Maniscalchi: It's not a real fireplace. It's one of those fake fireplaces that you press a button and it ignites through gas. It's not a fireplace that you would light up with fire.

Mr. Hughes: It's propane?

Mr. Maniscalchi: Propane.

Mr. Manley: O.K. but it…it does generate a flame, a fire?

Mr. Maniscalchi: If you're outside not for the inside purpose but for the outside people just sitting around watching the kids in the pool.

Chairperson Cardone: Joe you're calculations were based on…?

Mr. Mattina: The calculations were based on the total footprint of the structure including the overhang.

Mr. Hughes: Is the concrete edge consistent with the outside edge of that same overhang, the footprint of that building, the concrete?

Mr. Saffiotti: The foundation in the building plan and the foundation is only under the main structure, there's a concrete pad underneath the overhang but the foot…the…the pool house has a foundation that's 20 x 30.

Mr. Mattina: I have a set of plans here if you want to…

Chairperson Cardone: I really don't think we have enough information tonight to render any kind of a decision, you know, what I would ask for is that we get something in writing from Mr. Saffiotti or Mr. Manischalchi and also something in writing from Code Compliance. 

Mr. Hughes: And if there is any further correspondence with Mark Taylor or anyone else involved with this I'd like to be informed as well. 

Mr. Canfield: It just…in…in response to Grace, to clarify some of the confusion, we do have a pending legal action, Order to Remedies and Court Orders that are involved here. However, I don't say that to cloud your thinking I think as far as your Board is concerned is that's totally unrelated. O.K.? A…typically when there's a property involved in an enforcement action such as before the Planning Board its always viewed as its totally unrelated has nothing to with the a...application. In this case there is no application but what's before you. So I say that if we could just put that aside. Why this applic… or why this person and their attorney are here before you and us is on our request, Mr. Mattina's letter. Joe's letter did not specify the Section of the Code that we believe that brings us here and what we're looking at is 185-54 and that is the powers and duties of the Zoning Board under A. Interpretation. To determine an (on) appeal from an order, requirement, decision or determination (made) by an administrative or, (on a) request by an official board or agency of the Town, any of the following matters: (1) The meaning in (of) any portion of the text of this chapter or (of) any condition (or) requirement specified or made under the provision (s) of this chapter. That's the whole intent and what Code Compliance is looking to this Board for. Your decision will aid in perhaps the outcome of this case that's going, if you will. And we only look at…look to the Board is that there have been other applications before the Board where this type of scenario has been part of the discussion and its helpful in your decision and how you a…rule on the variance before given this same exact scenario where you had a building with a footprint, a concrete pad and an overhang and in that particular case the discussion was…lead towards it was part of the building. A…in this particular case there is a significant difference in the square footage. As Mr. Saffiotti said this overhang area is an additional 300 sq. ft. When you're talking in terms of lot coverage, which is the big issue in this whole a…case 300 sq. ft. makes a big difference. It may be…

Mr. Hughes: What are the percentages? 

Mr. Canfield: …it may be another variance that will be before this Board. This applicant will have to come before this Board on other issues in this case. Am I correct Mr. Saffiotti?

Mr. Saffiotti: Yes, we're trying to narrow the issues for this Board before we decide what is necessary. The…we all know that the Town Zoning Code allows a thousand square feet for accessory structures. We're trying to…if the overhead porch is included as…in the calculation for the structure we'll need to come back to this Board and seek an area variance to allow the pool house, the existing shed and gazebo to remain. We believe that is should not be included and an area variance is not required because its…we do not believe it should be used as part of the calculations of the structure under the Town Codes. The issue for this Board is does the definition of structure include the overhanging porch. That's why we asked for the interpretation.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so then having said all that what's the coverage that's allowed and what's the coverage that will be there with or without the three hundred? 

Mr. Saffiotti: If we don't have the three hundred we're under the thousand square feet.

Mr. Hughes: And if you're over?

Mr. Saffiotti: We would have to come back to this Board…

Mr. Hughes: What's the number?

Mr. Saffiotti: I don't know about eleven hundred square feet I think we are.

Mr. Canfield: 1294.

Mr. Hughes: So you're two hundred and ninety-four over.

Mr. Canfield: Two hundred and ninety-four square feet. 

Mr. Hughes: And on that foot printed coverage on that lot what percentage of the coverage of the lot does that equate to?

Inaudible.

Chairperson Cardone: I think that that's why for more information. I really think that we need much more information before we can even discuss it. 

Mr. Hughes: I would like to see something that's just a whisker this shy of a full application, mailings, I don't know if we dare without a Public Hearing and I don't look at this as being a short circuit or a short cut but we really don't have enough information without the calculations of the coverage, the building, the foot print and all that to give you an idea of what the interpretation should be.

Mr. Saffiotti: Well the Code clearly provides for a thousand square feet for the accessory structures.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, we understand that.

Mr. Saffiotti: And we already know the size of the shed and the gazebo and we know the size of the pool house. 

Mr. Hughes: But there's other things there we don't know and until we get the lot coverage…

Mr. Saffiotti: What else to you need to know?


Mr. Hughes: Well I mentioned a couple of things while we were talking.

Mr. Saffiotti: The lot cov…I have a copy of the survey of the property if that would help.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have the calculations?

Mr. Saffiotti: But why would that…why would that be necessary?

Mr. Hughes: Because we need to be informed to make a legitimate decision Mr. Saffiotti.

Mr. Saffiotti: The…the lot acreage is over…how large is your lot? He has a one acre lot, a pool and a...a…

Mr. Hughes: So that's not excessive for, you know, running wild. You're limited to the thousand square feet.

Mr. Saffiotti: Yes, we know we have a thousand square feet. We're not discussing that issue.

Mr. Hughes: We'd like to see the other numbers.

Mr. Saffiotti: But the only issue for this Board is is the overhang part if the structure or not for calculations of the thousand square feet. 

Mr. Hughes: I understand what you're trying to get at. 

Mr. Manley: Well I…I have an entirely different question that goes in a different area here and that would be…and that's something that you mentioned Ron about a Public Hearing. I'm a true believer that anytime we make a decision the public should have an opportunity to provide their input and we're making a decision that potentially will effect the square footage calculation for anybody in the future that decides that they want to do something to their property and make a change with respect to how that's calculated. So shouldn't the public have an opportunity to have a comment on what they feel should or shouldn’t…

Mr. Hughes: Sure… 

Mr. Manley: …how the Board should or shouldn't rule.

Mr. Hughes: …and I don't want to circumnavigate or short circuit the system. 

Mr. Donovan: Well let's back up for a second. When I got Joe Mattina's letter I really couldn't figure out exactly what we were being asked so I reached out to Mark Taylor and Mark gave me some information but I think it would be helpful…I mean, the issue is pretty much framed, I think it would be helpful if you advanced…this is a suggestion by the way not a legal opinion it’s a suggestion…you advanced your argument why the Code and the definition of building and floor area yield your calculation. Then I would suggest it would be helpful for the Board that you advance in writing your argument why the definition of building and floor area or whatever else you think supports your position should bring a different result then…

Mr. Saffiotti: We would have been glad to do that we only learned of this meeting on Monday we weren't notified in the letter that we were on the agenda for tonight until we…

Mr. Donovan: Well I…

Chairperson Cardone: Well actually a…actually you were on the agenda as other Board business to just discuss or whether or not and when we would hear this particular item.

Mr. Saffiotti: Yeah, we're just…we're willing to participate with the Board we're just looking for a clarification under the Zoning Code…that's the…the purpose and the power of this Board. 

Mr. Donovan: And typically actually what happens Jerry is that when you hit somebody with a Violation and they end up in Court they make an applica…they do actually make an application to us because it stays in the enforcement of the Court proceeding and we end up with an application submitted by the applicant. So this…so it kind of threw everybody up here off a little bit because it came at us from a different angle from what we're used to. A…but in any event I would suggest that that would be…it would be helpful to me I don't know if it would be helpful to the Board if we had the arguments in writing so when we make a decision we have some basis in the record for what we decided. Regarding the issue of a…of a Public Hearing…

Mr. Saffiotti: I don't know if we need an application if we don't know if we need a variance or not. 

Mr. Donovan: Well I didn't ask you to submit an application right? I…I asked you to submit the same thing I asked Code Compliance to do. You have an argument that says that portion shouldn't be calculated, right?

Mr. Saffiotti: That's our position.

Mr. Donovan: And I just want you to…whatever argument you want to make, maybe its that sentence but this Board is going to issue an interpretation at some point in time and I would like to have something in the record to bolster our…our decision. So I'm just asking that advance whatever argument you wish to make in writing just the way I'm asking Code Compliance to do that as well. So its not…its not an application that I'm not asking you to submit that. I think Ron is asking for the information that might be in an application but I'm asking for your argument and then that the Board has something a...that we can rely upon in…in deliberating in coming up to a decision. Is there an issue with that?

Mr. Saffiotti: We…we can submit a simple letter so…simply state what I've already stated is we know the size of the shed, we know the size of the gazebo, we know the size of the pool house we're asking we believe that the overhang should not be included in the area calculation. If you need that in writing we'll do it but…

Mr. Donovan: Well there…there…

Mr. Saffiotti: …we're trying to avoid having to come back here.

Mr. Donovan: …there's a reason…  

Mr. Saffiotti: We're trying to sto…avoid the court case, avoid an application. We may have to come to this Board for other variances. We don't…we're trying to narrow the issues. 

Mr. Hughes: Is the court case just expirations or is there more to it? You've asked us to put aside the litigation that's pending and looming is it just due to expirations or no Permits or is there other stuff to it?

Mr. Mattina: Well it has to do with an expiration of a Building Permit and the submittal of this application that was referred to the Zoning Board that he didn't follow through with.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe you could afford Mr. Saffiotti the opportunity and give him a sheet that shows the side yards, the setbacks, the coverage, the percentages and then he'll know what to fill out?

Mr. Mattina: They were given all that.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. let's do that then. 

Chairperson Cardone: Were there other variances that were required?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: That…that's what I was just going to comment on.  

Chairperson Cardone: Then I'm really…I guess I'm just not understanding if you have to come before us for other variances the interpretation could have been included with the other variances and it would have stayed the court action.

Mr. Saffiotti: We're not certain of the other variances till we get the issue of how many square feet we're allowed. Are we over the thousand square feet or not? Our position is we're under the thousand square feet we're just asking to get that issue resolved…

Mr. Canfield: If I may Mr. Saffiotti?

Mr. Saffiotti: Sure.

Mr. Canfield: To kind of help things move forward. And if I may question? Do you agree it must come before this Board for the shed being in the front yard?

Mr. Saffiotti: The applicant's property has…it’s a corner lot.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Saffiotti: And the existing shed, that we have a Building Permit application, was installed on what is the…what now both front yards and we would need an area variance for the setback to allow the shed. There's also a question on that issue because the Code defines the…an accessory structure has to just be behind the front of the house. It doesn't define the front yard. It's…its very gray in the Code. The…an accessory structure has to be behind the front of the house, the front of the houses one road not both roads so we have a lot of issues with the Code. We're trying to clarify it and that's why the Town attorney felt before we go to court, we adjourn court to come to this Board for an interpretation and we've...

Chairperson Cardone: Well technically you didn't come before the Board for the interpretation the Building Department. I have to make that clear.

Mr. Saffiotti: At the request of the Town attorney, yes.

Mr. Maher: If I may, so you're disputing the square footage on the pool house obviously and…?

Mr. Saffiotti: We're asking for an interpretation.

Mr. Maher: …and now in addition, you're saying that you're going to want an interpretation on a front yard also?

Mr. Saffiotti: We probably would at…it…we probably would just say that we would come back for an area variance.   

Mr. Maher: So if in fact you're coming back for the area variance for that why would you prolong it and not come back for the variance for both of them at the same time?

Mr. Saffiotti: We don't believe we need a variance for both of them. We needed an interpretation first…

Mr. Maher: So it’s a line in the sand more than likely…that's what the issue is?

Mr. Saffiotti: We're trying to resolve the issue. If you're telling us that we need a variance because we're over the thousand square feet we'll apply for that variance also. We don't believe that the overhanging porch should be included in the thousand square foot calculation.

Mr. Maher:  O.K. One question Jerry. If an applicant put a pavilion up in his yard, four posts, 20 x 20 with a roof on it would that be considered accessory area?

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Mr. Maher: O.K. I'm done.

Mr. Canfield: That was my point exactly.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: We felt the applicant had to come before this Board anyway and I was just trying to ascertain what the applicant's representative's contentions were. If we're going to come to this Board for the area variance for the shed in the front yard, to move things forward it would seem perhaps that would be the time to also ask for this interpretation…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Canfield: …in an official application form.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Saffiotti, at this time, are you willing to name the front yard so that we can establish what face going to consider? Or haven't you shuffled that around enough to determine? 

Chairperson Cardone: I think we can't even discuss that issue because that's not even before us right now. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well then…

Chairperson Cardone: Right now we're only talking about an interpretation.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well then I would feel more comfortable if you had soup to nuts, length, width, depth, side, backs, coverage and all the points and issues including naming what you want to consider naming what you want to consider the front of the house so that we can consider the two front yards and move on from there. It's pretty simple. 

Mr. Saffiotti: We didn't…we didn't say it wasn't say it wasn't simple.   

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Saffiotti: We're…we're trying to make easier not harder. We don't know if we need two variances or one. 

Ms. Drake: But all the paperwork…

Mr. Saffiotti: We think we only need one.

Mr. Hughes: The paperwork is the same.

Ms. Drake: But all the paperwork is the same, whether you…you're doing all the same mailings, the same paperwork and you've got to come for a variance anyway.

Mr. Saffiotti: That…that second variance is a gray area that we're still discussing with the Town attorney.

Chairperson Cardone: But the point is you can ask for an interpretation and a variance at the same time. 

Mr. Saffiotti: But we don't know that we need the second variance. We're not sure. 

Mr. Manley: But if end up needing it can just withdraw it.  

Chairperson Cardone: But if you have two front yards, yes you do need a variance. 

Mr. Saffiotti: That…I understand your position; I don't think there's provisions in the Code, there's some interpretation about that because the requirements of the front area, the front yard requirements for accessory structures says that the accessory structure must be behind the front of the house. It’s…it's a…I probably would agree that we should just come for the ar…one area variance for the shed in…in the front yard we don't know if we need the second variance that's why we said we would come for the interpretation first at the suggestion of the Town attorney and Code Compliance to resolve this issue. The…the issue here is your Code defines structure to be measured, building structure to be measured based on the exterior walls. The definition used by Code Compliance would include the roof overhang. We don't believe that's appropriate. If this Board says it is we will come back for the area variance. We're asking for an interpretation. 

Mr. Maher: So you don't agree with Mr. Canfield's interpretation of a 20 x 20 building with just a roof on it an no walls as coverage as an accessory use, an accessory area? You don't agree with that?

Mr. Saffiotti:  I don't know that it's defined in the Code correctly that way. I think the Code is vague on it and again the Section of the Code 195-3 defines structure based on exterior walls.

Mr. McKelvey: Jerry, carport…

Mr. Hughes: Doesn't have a…

Mr. Saffiotti: No walls.

Mr. McKelvey: You've got to come; you've got to get up.

Mr. Canfield: That's correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: That's correct.

Mr. Canfield: Also I may add…

Mr. Saffiotti: (Inaudible) Board makes that interpretation we'll come back for the variance. We're looking to resolve the issue with the Town so Mr. Maniscalchi can get his Building Permits resolved and get his Certificate of Occupancies. The structures are already there and erected. And he had the Building Permit for his pool house.  

Mr. Canfield: There's just one thing I might like to add, which aided in our decision is that the definition in 185-3 of a building which is a structure wholly or partly enclosed with an exterior walls and a roof affording shelter to persons, animal and property, which covers the scenario that you were talking about Mike.


Mr. Hughes: I don't know how the rest of you feel but I'm looking for some more information including that complete sheet to be filled out and then we'll go on from there otherwise we're just rolling the dice here. Everybody else has to go through the process I'd feel more comfortable if you would as well.

Mr. Canfield: If I may add, just to clarify also, for the record 185-3 the definition of a structure, anything which is constructed or erected which requires a location on the land or attachment to something having such location included but not limited to the following: signs or billboards, fences, walls other than those less than four feet high, radio and television antennas except for such antennas installed on the roof of a building, pergolas, porches, outdoor bins, tool sheds, carports, equipment and storage buildings and sheds, swimming pools, swimming pool filter pads, tennis courts, dog house and sheds and children's tree houses, club houses, doll houses and play houses and structures all of which are over ten feet in height, tents, lunch wagons, trailers, dining cars and similar structures on wheels or other supports used for business or living purposes and the term structure shall also include building which refers us back to 185-3 the previous definition of a building which specifically says walls, partly or wholly. So that's where we divide our decision at and it should be included. Just to correct Mr. Saffiotti's definition of a structure.  

Mr. Saffiotti: We're trying to clarify and look for an answer from the Board if it is…if it is the roof overhang is part of the structure if that's what the Board interprets we'll come back for the variance for that also. We're here to try to clarify what is…what variances are necessary.

Mr. Hughes: Well if you're here to clarify would you have any objections to giving us what we're asking for or do you just want to come back? It's boiled down to that from where I am.

Mr. Saffiotti: If you're asking me to provide more documentation we'll have to come back anyway.

Mr. Hughes: I guess we'll see you when you come back then.

Mr. Saffiotti: If that's what the Board chooses I've mean…it would be just as easy…

Mr. Hughes: Well I'm…I'm just speaking for myself. It has to go through a...   

Mr. Saffiotti: Whatever the Board wishes.

Mr. Hughes: …whatever the Board wants.

Mr. Donovan: Well, I understand…well Code Compliance is asking for the interpretation. You can…you can always submit an application for an area variance or on the alternative an interpretation. Right?  Which…which would bring this to a head all at once and…

Mr. Saffiotti: We just want to resolve the issue with this Board. That's what we're looking to do.

Mr. Hughes: Even if there is another way to resolve it?

Mr. Saffiotti: If…if this Board…

Mr. Donovan: Well, I think…can we…you have the denial, right? So you can make an application to us where you seek a variance and/or an interpretation. 

Mr. Saffiotti: But not on the pool house, there's no denial here. There's a referral. Did you deny or you got a Building Permit on that?   

Mr. Canfield: There is a denial, which was issued a while ago. The lack or lack of action on that denial and referral to this Board is what brought the…us to this point.  

Mr. Donovan: Well I think you can also come here on the fact that they've issued the Appearance Ticket. I think you can come here and stay that action by that application.

Mr. Saffiotti: But I believe we have three Building Permit applications pending. One for the gazebo, one for the shed and one for the pool house and we're looking to close all those out with the Building Department.  

Inaudible.

Mr. Mattina: Yes, the pool house Permit has expired plus it wasn't constructed as originally approved so there will need to be a new Building Permit for that, there needs to be a septic design. There is an application for the gazebo. There is an application for the shed. They were referred to the Zoning Board Secretary on March 10th, the Disapproval letters were sent out on March 10th for the shed and the gazebo. 

Mr. Saffiotti: Based on the area, the size of the accessory structure is what your…

Mr. Mattina: And the shed being in the front yard. Yes.

Mr. Saffiotti: Yes, which is why we went…we discussed this matter with the Town attorney who said yes, it's a gray area, come to the ZBA, do the interpretation to see which variances are necessary that's why we're here tonight. If the Board wants us to come back we'll come back. We're trying to narrow the issues for this Board.

Chairperson Cardone: Joe, you said there is not a denial on the…on which part did you say there was not a denial?

Mr. Mattina: There is a denial letter on the prior built shed.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Mattina: There's also one on the prior built gazebo. Those are the two denial letters that were sent out on March 11th. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. and but do…one of them has to do with the two front yards.

Mr. Mattina: The shed has…the shed is in a front yard, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. and on the pool house, what is…or the gazebo, what was gazebo?

Mr. Mattina: Once again it’s the square footage, they're over the thousand square foot of accessory square footage.

Mr. Donovan: But have you issued a denial on that?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Saffiotti: On the pool house?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, there's two.

Mr. Saffiotti: Not on the pool house?

Mr. Mattina: No, the pool house there is not.

Mr. Maher: But that being said, if in fact an application was filed for the variance for the square footage to allow the gazebo that would eliminate any variance for I mean, for the pool house, correct? Because the square footage is washed, correct? In essence?

Mr. Hughes: An offsetting penalty? 

(Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: What is the total square footage for the pool house?

Mr. Hughes: Twelve nine-four.

Chairperson Cardone: The shed.

Mr. Mattina: The total square footage is twelve nine-four, the gazebo, the shed and the pool house. 

Mr. Maher: Do you have the gazebo in the penalty?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Maher: What would that be square footage wise? Not to confuse you but or make it difficult but…the reason being if in fact the gazebo is only two hundred square feet then even with the pool house you're still one thousand ninety-four square feet. You're still over the maximum allowed either way so whether you're issued a variance the gazebo or the pool house ultimately it makes a difference.

Mr. Hughes: How big is your gazebo?

Mr. Maniscalchi: A hundred square feet, 10 x 10.

(Inaudible)

Mr. Maher: So then, ultimately you have one ninety-four over for the pool house.

Mr. Hughes: You're down to eleven nine-four. You're still over. 

Mr. Mattina: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Mattina: The pool house as a single structure is fine. It's when you add the shed, add the gazebo that takes us over the thousand square feet.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Maher: So, just to clarify, if a variance is…is applied for for the pool house…the three hundred square foot the extra we're discussing here, if that is in fact issued then that negates the denial and the Permit for the gazebo because now the falls within the allowed.

Mr. Mattina: Correct.

Mr. Maher: So then you could approve that…

Mr. Mattina: If you decide that the overhang does not count then the gazebo goes away but then the shed is here for the front yard.

Mr. Maher: O.K.

Mr. Saffiotti: We're trying to figure out what is necessary with this Board. We know we have to come back to this Board. We're trying to get an interpretation on the overhang so we know whether we need two area variances or one. If you're tell…if the Board wants to decide that issue we can come back for both we will that's…we just want to resolve the issue.

Mr. Donovan: But the feeling I got in the beginning is you didn't have enough information. If you thing you have enough information and you can render a determination one way or another then you can do that.

Mr. Hughes: We still don't have figures on the lot coverage and other stuff that's pertinent.

Mr. Donovan: Well I…

Chairperson Cardone: We don't need that.

Mr. Donovan: …but the point is that if...

Mr. Hughes: Are you sure?

Mr. Donovan: …well if you determine…

Mr. Hughes: You only have an acre here, forty thousand square feet, what's the percentage?

Mr. Donovan: …well if you…if you determine that the area underneath the overhang is included, right, then there is the variance application.

Chairperson Cardone: That's the only thing that we have to address right now on the letter from Mr. Mattina. The only thing we have to address is the calculation of the square footage. Does it include the overhang or doesn't it?

Mr. Hughes: I agree with the Building Department.

Chairperson Cardone: And if you, you know, if the Board feels ready to make that decision this evening without any further information then we can have a vote on that.

Does it include or doesn't it include?

Mr. Saffiotti: Whatever the Board decides we're willing to come back for the two variances if that's your interpretation. We're not sure what we need that…whether we need that second variance or not. 

Mr. Manley: My feeling is that…that the Building Department has been consistent in applying the Code. As Mr. Canfield read it it seems pretty clear to me that, you know, that three hundred square feet would be included not excluded.

Mr. Hughes: An outside is an outside wall even if it’s a four-inch soffit and that's the outside perimeter of the building. I agree with that and it's up to the Board. I'm only one Member here. 

Mr. Manley: I haven't heard anything else differently that why it should not count.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Well if that's the determination of the Board then I would suggest a motion to the effect that the Zoning Board of Appeals determines that the definition of a structure building in an accessory use includes the areas inclusive of the overhang, put it that way.

Mr. Saffiotti: If that's what the Board decides we'll come back for the area variance. I mean, we're…we're just looking to resolve the issue with the Town and we need to…we…they are already built; the structures are in place we want to resolve this issue.

We don't know what variances we need.

Mr. Maher: It…it appears that you want to get this closed out quickly.

Mr. Saffiotti: We're trying to work with the Town to resolve it.

Mr. Maher: I understand. But if in fact the denials were issued in March why are you here in September just getting to this point now?

Mr. Saffiotti: We've been back and forth with Mark Taylor because there is…the legal definition isn't quite as simple as you would have it…

Mr. Maher: No, I understand that but to eliminate any hardship for the owner it seems to me that it would have been the proper thing to do to apply for the variance. Obviously there's some money involved as far as filing the papers but if in fact its quite obvious there are two front yards and the way the Code is applied if there are two front yards and a variance is needed. So there is no additional expense to apply for two, three or four variances other than the initial filing. So I'm still…

Mr. Saffiotti: It's not the expense; we're not clear of what we need variances for. We don't want to…we don't want to apply for something that we don’t need that's why we're asking for the interpretation.

Ms. Drake: But we've had variance applications where they've had multiple and then they turned out they don't need one or two of them and then or they apply for the interpretation and variance saying O.K. if you determine your interpretation is we need the variance the application is already submitted and we'll move forward on the variance.        

Mr. Saffiotti: That's…we'll do whatever way the Board wants us to do so where it can get to the core of this issue and resolve this. My client needs to get this behind him, doesn't want to be involved in litigation with the Town and the court, wants to clean up the issue and we want to cooperate. If we need two variances, we need two variances. We believe we only need one. If the Board interprets that we need two we'll come back for two.

Chairperson Cardone: I feel that it should be included. That's just my opinion.

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion that the overhangs are included. 

Mr. Saffiotti: Then we'll come back for the two variances then.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Maher: Second

Chairperson Cardone: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. Do we have anything else that the Board…?  Did everyone get a chance to read the minutes from the last month? Do we have a motion to approve those minutes?

Mr. Maher: So moved. 

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye - All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response. 

Chairperson Cardone: There is no other business? Do we have a motion to adjourn the meeting?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The meeting is adjourned. See you next month. 
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